
MINUTES 
Of the Township of West Milford 

         ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
           JANUARY 22, 2008 
         Regular Meeting 

 
Robert Brady, Board Chairman, opened the Regular Meeting of the Zoning Board of 
Adjustment at 7:31 p.m.  The Board Secretary read the Legal Notice. 
 
PLEDGE 
 

Since we already did The Pledge of Allegiance for the Reorganization meeting, it was 
not necessary to do again. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Present:    Ada Erik, Francis Hannan, Daniel Jurkovic, William Lynch, 

Arthur McQuaid, Gian Severini, Barry Wieser,  Frank Curcio and 
Robert Brady. 

Also Present:  Stephen Glatt, Board Attorney, William Drew, Planning Director, 
Richard McFadden, Board Engineer, Robert Kirkpatrick, 
Emergency Planner and Denyse Todd, Board Secretary. 

Absent:  none 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
The Chairman read the Legal Notice and explained the procedures of the Board of 
Adjustment. 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 

TIME EXTENSION 
 

EXXON ON THE RUN 
UseVariance#0640-0764 
Preliminary & Final Site Plan #0620-0274 
Variance#0630-0275 
Block 15505; Lot 1 
2899 STATE HIGHWAY 23 
 
Marlene Eickmeyer of the Law firm of Price, Meese spoke on behalf of Exxon on 
The Run, Mr. Glatt said he received a letter, which stated that Exxon was 
requesting a 2-month adjournment. They would like to return to the Board in 
March.  Extensive site plan changes are being made.  Mr. Brady said that he 
wants to extend the application.  The letter acts as the extension.  Mr. McQuaid 
made the Motion for the time extension, Ada Erik second. 
 
The Board Attorney asked the Board Secretary to keep the letter requesting the 
extension in the file.  Ms Eickmeyer was asked to sign our extension requesting 
60 days. 
 

 

NEW APPLICATIONS 
 

SCOTT LEONESCU 
USE VARIANCE # 0740-0789 
Block 15401; Lot 51 R-4 Zone 
187 Larue Road 
 
The Chairman explained that the Principal Planner would be Robert Kirkpatrick since 
Mr. Drew recused himself from this application. 
 



  Township of West Milford  

  Zoning Board of Adjustment  

  Regular Meeting Minutes 

  January 22, 2008 

  Page 2 of 7 

John Barbarula, Esq. Is representing Mr. Leonescu.  Mr. Barbarula said that the 
purpose of this application is for an alternate use for this property.  Mr. Barbarula 
explained the reason for this requested variance.  Mr. Barbarula's concern is that there 
may come a time when a funeral home will not be allowed in a residential zone. They 
are proposing that the first floor would be offices.  Mr. Glatt  asked Mr. Barbarula if the 
applicant was requesting two principal uses for the same property.  Mr. Barbarula said 
that they were asking for two principal uses for the property but not at the same time.  
The applicant's attorney explained that the other use would be substituted for the 
funeral parlor if regulations change or a new tenant can't be found for the funeral parlor.  
Mr. Glatt asked why the request couldn't take place if that happens, why do it now. Mr. 
Barbarula said that the time it could take for vacation of the property and finding a new 
tenant could be a long time.  Mr. Barbarula explained that the request is for multiple 
uses on the property and that they would stipulate that only one use could be used.  Mr. 
Glatt was concerned that approving this would set a bad precedent.  Mr. Glatt asked 
what would happen if the use and/or the Ordinance was changed. Mr. Glatt asked if 
there was anything in the Municipal Land Use Laws that would allow this.  Mr. Glatt 
asked Mr. Barbarula if this is presently a preexisting non-conforming use, Mr. Barbarula 
said that it was.  Mr. Glatt asked if the approval was made wouldn’t that mean that the 
current use would be wiped out, and Mr. Barbarula said that they wanted that left in.  Mr 
Barbarula said that they can show that they have the criteria for a use variance.  The 
applicant's attorney feels it is similar to a shopping center with multiple uses.  A Board 
Member pointed out that this property is in a residential zone also that a shopping 
center is not a non-conforming use. 
 
Mr. Glatt said that he understands the time frame but he isn't comfortable with the Board 
having to hear this application, Mr. Glatt wants to hear about the authority on this type of 
matter, it is a dangerous precedent.  Mr. Glatt pointed out that we don't allow two uses 
for one property. 
 
Mr. Barbarula cited a few cases about expansions of a non-conforming use.    Mr. Glatt 
asked a few questions about those specific cases were they preexisting non-conforming 
uses.  Mr. Barbarula said they would stipulate that the two uses wouldn't coexist.  Mr. 
Barbarula said that they were bifurcating this use application from site plan.  Mr. Glatt 
asked if they would carry the application for 30 days.  Mr. Hannan pointed out that the 
Master Plan is a concern.  Mr. Glatt asked for the time for research, he wasn't sure if 
this Board had jurisdiction to hear this application.  Mr. Jurkovic feels that a new use 
should eliminate the preexisting non-conforming use.    Mr. Glatt asked if the Ordinance 
allows different uses. 
 
There is a question about the wording of the application, which has residential above 
the funeral parlor.  Mr. Glatt said that there is nothing on application regarding the first 
floor.  Mr. Barbarula said the client filled it out Mr. Glatt said that if the advertising was 
done from the application, it might need to be changed. Mr. Barbarula said they would 
grant the extension for our research and to see if an amended application will be 
needed. 
 
Motion by Arthur McQuaid to carry the application 
Second by Ada Erik to carry for 30 days. 
Roll Call Vote: 

Yes:   Ada Erik, Francis Hannan, Daniel Jurkovic, William Lynch, Arthur 
McQuaid, Gian Severini, Robert Brady 

No: none 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
SHOEBOX STORAGE, LLC 
Use Variance #0740-0788 
Bulk Variance #0730-0777 
De minimus Exception 
Block 16005; Lot 16 
Paul Street, CC & R-4 Zone 
 



  Township of West Milford  

  Zoning Board of Adjustment  

  Regular Meeting Minutes 

  January 22, 2008 

  Page 3 of 7 

Mr. Drew is returning to the meeting.  Marc Palus of Map Engineering and Michael 
Vander Ploeg, 27 Cooper Road were sworn in.  MAP Engineering 170 Kinnelon Road, 
Ste. 36, he is an Engineer and Planner, for this application.  Licensed Engineer in New 
Jersey, BA and Masters in Civil Engineering from Rutgers, has been licensed for 11 
years, has made appearances for our Planning Board as well as other Boards in the 
State.  Credentials were accepted. 
 
Mr. Palus explained that a zone barrier line runs through the property.  Delineated 
wetlands LOI, Northwest corner of property can be built on according to the DEP.  
Majority of property is R-4 a small portion is CC zone.  Can't access the property from 
Oak Ridge Road because of the wetlands.  They want the access to be from Paul 
Street. The first nonconformity is a front yard setback, 58.7 feet, which won't be closer 
to Paul Street than the other dwellings.  For the side yard, they can't go east because of 
wetland buffer.  They are requesting 27 feet off side yard.  A very small portion would be 
able to be built on.      
 
Mr. Brady said that Shoebox Storage is a Limited Liability Company that the applicant 
needs to be represented by an attorney.  Mr. Glatt explained that it is a public entity so it 
needs to be represented by an attorney.  It was confirmed that the deed was under the 
name Shoebox Storage LLC.  Mr. Glatt suggested a 5 minute break at this time so the 
applicant and his professional could discuss what to do. 
 
Motion by Ada Erik to take a break 
Second by Francis Hannan 
All in Favor 
 
Mr. Brady called the meeting back to order, returned from the break, the applicant will 
be represented by Mr. John Barbarula Esq. 1242 Route 23, Butler, NJ.  The witnesses 
were sworn in again for the record.  Mr. Palus is both the Planner and the Engineer.  Mr. 
Barbarula asked questions of the professional for the record.  Michael Vander Ploeg 
was also sworn in as the Managing Member of Shoebox Storage, LLC. 
 
Mr. Palus was asked to explain the property it is Lot 16 in Block 16005, a 5-½ acre 
piece of property located between Paul Street and Oak Ridge Road.  There is a small 
portion of the property adjacent to Paul Street, which is zoned, R-4.  The majority is 
zoned CC.  The placement of the dwelling will be across the CC Zone and the R-4 zone 
it would cross 2 zones.  The property has a significant wetland area.  There is 
approximately ¾ acres of the property is developable.  Mr. Barbarula asked Mr. Palus if 
he could get a waiver for the wetlands from the state and the answer was that it would 
be unlikely.   
 
Mr. Palus was asked to describe Paul Street.  It is a residential street but not a public 
road.  3 homes are located on the north side of Paul Street. (The title will be forwarded 
to the Planning Department showing access to Paul Street).  Mr. Palus was asked to 
explain the zone lines on the map.  The wetlands were pointed out and the area 
available for development.   
 
Mr. Palus was asked to explain the variances needed, the first was the front yard 
setback.  The Ordinance for the R-4 zone requires 125 feet, which would place it 
outside of the R-4 zone they are proposing 58.7 feet.  The other homes on Paul Street 
are closer than the proposed setback.  The side yard setback requirement is 60 feet, 
which would encroach the wetland buffer line they are proposing 27 feet.  No detriment 
to neighboring properties.  Fairy Tale Forest buildings will be removed.  They are within 
DEP and Highlands regulations.  They require a use variance-CC Zone, residential 
home on commercial property zone.  They feel it is a good use of this property since 
such a small area is developable, and also it is a residential not a commercial building.  
Mr. Brady asked the attorney for the professional to address the Township Engineer's 
memo of January 11, 2007.  As follows: 
 
item 1  removing buildings** Mr. McFadden asked about specific buildings that  
  will be removed. 



  Township of West Milford  

  Zoning Board of Adjustment  

  Regular Meeting Minutes 

  January 22, 2008 

  Page 4 of 7 

item 2  driveway 10 % grade for the driveway ok, he’ll try 
item 3  curb ok 
item 4  storm water ok 
item 5  overflows ok 
item 6  improvements to Paul Street ok 
item 7  checklist ok 
   

The impervious coverage will be increased by .43%.  This percentage is based on 5 ½ 
acres.  A Board Member asked for the specific percentage of developable land.  
Estimated ¾ acre 15.6%.  Less than the 25% allowed. 
 
Mr. Jurkovic asked why they wanted access from Paul Street and not Oak Ridge Road.  
Mr. Palus said that there was a lot of commercial businesses in that area of Oak Ridge 
Road.   
 
A Board Member asked why it wasn't a subdivision and Mr. Palus said it was a 
preexisting self-standing lot.  The applicant was asked if buy/sell letters were sent.  No 
they were not because one would be Paul Street and the other Shoebox Storage LLc  
are the surrounding lots. 
 
The De  minimus exception was discussed for access to and from Paul Street instead of 
Oak Ridge Road.  They feel there is no undue burden for those residents since there is 
already residential homes on Paul Street. 
 
Mr. Brady opened the meeting to the public for Open Meeting Acts 
Ada Erik moved to close public portion. 
Daniel Jurkovic Second 
All in favor to close public portion. 
 
Mr. Barbarula summed up the application. 
Mr. Brady explained that there would be more than 1 motion. 
 
Arthur McQuaid made a motion to grant Use Variance #0740-0788 for the reason that it 
is the best use of the land because of the wetlands and there is really no other 
developable land. 
Second:  Daniel Jurkovic 
 
Roll Call Vote: 

Yes:   Ada Erik, Francis Hannan, Daniel Jurkovic, William Lynch, Arthur 
McQuaid, Gian Severini, Robert Brady 

No: none 
 

Arthur McQuaid made a motion to grant the associated bulk variances.  With the 
condition of addressing the Township Engineer's memo. 
Second: William Lynch 
 
Roll Call Vote: 

Yes:   Ada Erik, Francis Hannan, Daniel Jurkovic, William Lynch, Arthur 
McQuaid, Gian Severini, Robert Brady 

No: none 
 

Motion by Arthur McQuaid for the approval of the De minimus exception with the 
improvements to Paul Street using the Township Engineer's requirements. 
Second by Gian Severini 
 
Roll Call Vote: 

Yes:   Ada Erik, Francis Hannan, Daniel Jurkovic, William Lynch, Arthur 
McQuaid, Gian Severini, Robert Brady 

No: none 
 

1952 UNION VALLEY ROAD         



  Township of West Milford  

  Zoning Board of Adjustment  

  Regular Meeting Minutes 

  January 22, 2008 

  Page 5 of 7 

Use Variance #0540-0698      
Preliminary & Final Site Plan #0420-0167AB 
Bulk Variance #0430-0647 
De Minimis Exception 
Block 3601; Lots 1 & 3 
1952 Union Valley Road; CC Zone 
 
Mr. John Barbarula, Esquire is the attorney for the applicant.   Frank Curcio recused 
himself from this application.  Mr. Barbarula confirmed a full Board with 1 alternate.   
There are 2 lay witnesses. The purpose of the application is to create a gas station, deli 
with apartments above.  Mr. Glatt swore in the applicant and the Engineers.  Applicants 
Lewis Quarmout, Newton, NJ,   Anwar Quarmout 45 Woodside Ave. Newton, NJ.  
George Gloede, G. Gloede, Oak Ridge, NJ, Peter W. Snyder, Engineer, signed plans., 
Alan Hildebrandt Aaron Isaac & Hildebrandt, headed up the contracts.  Each will give 
credentials,  Alan licensed in NJ since 1976, current, other Boards as a Professional 
about a dozen times, Mr. Snyder, 1978 licensing in NJ current, other Boards, George 
Gloede, licensed in NJ since 1976, in front of the Board. 
 
Alan Hildebrandt will be speaking first, the site plan is being discussed.  The original 
application was withdrawn in May, 2007 without prejudice.  There were discrepancies 
with the site plan that now are corrected.  Mr. Drew's May, 2007 report needs to be 
completed and updated with recommendations, he anticipates that the application will 
be carried because of the extent of the testimony.  Mr. Barbarula said that they will be 
requesting that the application be carried because there is a separate Planning 
segment.   
  
Mr. Hildebrandt will be speaking first and the other engineers will be on hand if needed. 
Exhibit A-1 sheet 5 of 11 with revisions was introduced for landscaping, the Board has 
this but it is not in color.  Overall configuration first, then improvements.  Delicatessen at 
the corner of Union Valley Road and Stainsby Road.  Property is 1.3 acres, impervious 
coverage is 27% to be increased to 54%. They will be expanding the building, the curb 
line will be continuing from the car wash.  The parking area was explained. There are 31 
parking spaces and they took out the peninsulas per the Engineer's original request.  
Because of the size of the building just the deli requires 28 spaces per the Township  
Ordinance.  They are not opposed to reducing the amount of spaces.  Mr. Drew was 
asked about the parking spaces, he said it would be 5 spaces per 1,000 square feet of 
commercial space, which works out to be 28 spaces.  The applicant wants to show a 
compliant application and then introduce a plan where the Board might agree to  reduce 
the amount of parking spaces.  Mr. Glatt wanted clarification on whether they were 
amending their application or seeking advice or opinions from the Board. The applicant 
said  they initially wanted to show a compliant application.  They want to show the Use 
affect on other aspects of the application.  Mr. Barbarula asked about the internal traffic 
if the delivery vehicles will be able to safely make egress and ingress around the 
parking areas.  Mr. Hildebrandt doesn't feel there will be a problem since the parking 
spots won't be utilized much.   
 
George Gloede did the drainage aspect of the plan.  Drainage patterns and proposed 
runoff.  Flat front, water toward trench drain, underground tanks will take parking lot 
drainage.  Roof drainage seepage pits.  Four 3,000 gallon tanks, pump tank, future 
catch basin on Stainsby Road.  Storm septor units which will separate solids.  Curbing 
doesn't allow overland flow but with trench drains it should work.  Mr. Barbarula asked 
about the maintenance of the storm septor units.  He explained how that works and how 
often it needs to be cleaned.  Flow won't affect the adjoining properties, following DEP 
regulations and Stormwater Management for the State of New Jersey.  Manhole access 
covers will be flush with the surface. 
 
The landscape engineer spoke about the trees, sugar maples, junipers, white pines, 
recommendations were given to the applicant and Mr. Barbarula would like to discuss 
this.  The Planner's letter, and Mr. McFadden's letter revised January 22, 2008. 
   



  Township of West Milford  

  Zoning Board of Adjustment  

  Regular Meeting Minutes 

  January 22, 2008 

  Page 6 of 7 

1. Adjust building size and parking lot, hopefully, possibly reducing building by 500 
square feet. 

2. Curb and sidewalk 3 feet off property line with neighboring carwash. (additional 
right of way may be required) 

3. Sidewalk  
4. topography will be taken care of 
5. modified 
6. modified 
7. spot elevation correcting side walk detail reinforcing mesh on side walk 
8. handicap penalty sign  
9. sign location County information 
10. Union Valley Road typo 
11. note area curb sidewalk lawn 
12. distance of trees first should be 15 feet from dumpster then 15 feet thereafter 
13. site line distance profile elevation (3 ½ feet, needs to be submitted) 
14. Stainsby not private, plans should indicate 
15. Relocate mailboxes 
16. Drop curb at driveway of Stainsby Road block curbing, a inlet to d inlet additional 

curbing ok 
17. Stormwater dry well over flow pipe invert elevations 
18. seepage pit connector pipe 
19. eliminate pump discharge system, gravity fed shallow tanks will look into it. 

Engineering problem with the pump, maintenance, Mr. McFadden will help. 
Better if gravity could be used.  Less money, more tanks mentioned system in 
report.  Shoot elevation themselves, work backwards.   

20. Location of the storm septor on lot 2, may change if tanks change. Changed 
drywells already, shift manhole, it may work.  Trench drains noted to clot, change 
grades, instead of manhole, will need inflow information if using trench drains. 
Catch basin in corner. 
  

Mr. Barbarula said they would like to shoot the elevation and if a revision on the 
application or plans is needed, it will be to us within 10 days before hearing, since any 
change could shift something else, they would like to carry until the next hearing, they 
have a planning presentation, and our Planning Director has updates and 
recommendations also, Mr Barbarula would like the Board to authorize for the engineers 
to meet. Mr. Mc Fadden was asked for a copy of the shot taken, Mr. McFadden said he 
couldn't.  If redesigning the storm system and impervious area is changed it should be 
recalculated.  A Board Member said that a traffic study also should be provided as 
requested by the Police Department.  Mr. Barbarula requested that the application be 
carried and granted the Board any extension so the applicant can address the 
Enginneer's recommendations and also so they have their Planner present.  Mr. Brady 
said that if Mr. Barbarula is planning to finish up the application at the February 26, 
2008 meeting that it would be opened to the public for any questions so the Engineers 
should be present for that portion as well.  Mr. Brady asked for a motion to carry the 
application. 
 
Motion by Ada Erik to carry the application to February 26, 2008. 
Second by William Lynch 
All in Favor 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

   

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Motion by Ada Erik to approve the minutes of the December 18,2007 Regular Meeting 
of the Zoning Board of Adjustment with the amendment of adding Arthur McQuaid to the 
attendance. 
Second by William Lynch 
On a Voice Vote, all were in favor. 
 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

COMMUNICATIONS 



  Township of West Milford  

  Zoning Board of Adjustment  

  Regular Meeting Minutes 

  January 22, 2008 

  Page 7 of 7 

Mr. Drew said there is copy of the NJPO By-laws are in the Planning Department if 
anyone would like a copy. 

 

MISCELLANEOUS 
Mr. Glatt's contract was read to the Board. 
 
Motion by Ada Erik to approve the Board Attorney’s contract. 
Second by Gian Severini 
All In Favor to approve the attorney contract 
Abstain: Daniel Jurkovic 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business to attend to, Mr. Brady asked for a motion to adjourn the 
Regular Meeting of the Zoning Board of Adjustment. 
Motion by Ada Erik. 
Second by William Lynch. 
On a Voice Vote, all were in favor of adjourning the January 22, 2008 Regular Meeting 
of the Zoning Board of Adjustment. 
Motion carried. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 10:05 p.m. 
 
Adopted:  February 26, 2008 
        
         
 

 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by 

 
 
        

Denyse L. Todd, Secretary  
 Zoning Board of Adjustment 


